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LOPATCONG TOWNSHIP ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 11, 2016 
 

CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN GARY 
 
SILENT PRAYER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
OPEN PUBLIC MEETINGS STATEMENT:  “adequate notice of this meeting has been provided 
indicating the time and place in accordance with Chapter 231 of the Public Laws of 1975 by advertising a 
Notice in The Star-Gazette and The Express-Times and by posting a copy on the bulletin board in the 
Municipal Building”. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Members DeGroff, Horun, Devos, Bittone, Larsen, Vice-Chairman Rutledge, Chairman Gary 
Absent:  Member Unangst 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 

• Approve the Regular Meeting Minutes from April 13, 2016 
 
Member Devos:  I have a question. 
 
Chairman Gary:  Oh, sure. 
 
Member Devos:  Um, on, on reading the minutes, I wasn’t here for them, so I have to abstain, but in 
reading the minutes, uh, one of the statements is that the Townships making the choice to sell it to the 
developer; and it’s  
 
Chairman Gary:  Yeah. 
 
Member Devos:  School Board. 
 
Chairman Gary:  Yes. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  The minutes are accurate, I think the testimony was inaccurate, but the minutes do 
reflect what was testified to.  I think it was a mistake on behalf of the person who was testifying. 
 
Member Devos:  Okay. 
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Attorney Sposaro:  So the minutes should stand, uh, but we’ll have to see what we have to do, if anything, 
to correct the record on that. 
 
Motion by:  Vice-Chairman Rutledge   Seconded by:  Member Bittone 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
AYES:  Members DeGroff, Horun, Bittone, Larsen and Vice-Chairman Rutledge  
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN:  Member Devos, Chairman Gary 
 

• Approve Resolution 2015-08 - Hawrylo Application Status - Application for the Construction of 
a driveway through a right-of-way between Block 93.02, Lots 6 & 7 in Lopatcong Township, to 
access block 12.01, Block 3 in Greenwich Township. Resolution to dismiss the application 
without prejudice. 

 
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
TOWNSHIP OF LOPATCONG 

WARREN COUNTY, NEW JERSEY 
CASE NO.:  2015-08 

PREMISES:  BLOCK 3, LOT 12.01 (GREENWICH TOWNSHIP) 
RESOLUTION DISMISSING THE APPLICATION OF JOHN S.  

HAWRYLO WITHOUT PREJUDICE 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, John S. Hawrylo has made application to the Zoning Board of Adjustment of the  

Township of Lopatcong for variance relief for the construction of a driveway through an unimproved  

segment of the Spruce Run Lane right-of-way to service a new home proposed on the property designated  

on the Greenwich Township tax map as Block 3, Lot 12.01. 

 WHEREAS, the within matter was heard and considered at the regular open public meeting of  

the Zoning Board of Adjustment of Lopatcong Township on Wednesday, October 14, 2015 held at the  

Municipal Building, 232 South Third Street, Morris Park, Phillipsburg, New Jersey 08865; and  

 WHEREAS, the aforesaid open public meeting was noticed, advertised and held in accordance  

with the Open Public Meetings Act; and 

 WHEREASS, this matter was opened to the public for both the questioning of witnesses as  

comments; and 

 WHEREAS, The Zoning Board of Adjustment considered the following: 
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1. Application for Variance; 
2. Variance Checklist; 
3. Description of Relief Requested – Variance and Waiver; 
4. Copy of Recorded Deed for Lot 12.01 in Block 3, Greenwich Township; 
5. Completed W-9 form; 
6. Plan entitled “Variance Map – Spring Rum Lane Road Right-of-Way”, 

Consisting of one sheet, prepared by Parker Engineering & Surveying, P.C., dated 
December 9, 2015; 

7. Recorded final plat for the Scotts Mountain Estates major subdivision 
Entitled “Final Plat, Phases 1 and 2 for Scotts Mountain Estates – Block 93, 
Lots 14 and 15.01, Lopatcong Township, Warren County, New Jersey”, 
Consisting of two sheets, prepared by Errol Melnick, P.L.S. of VanCleef Engineering 
Associates, dated July 12, 2000 revised through December 7, 2000; 

8. Report prepared by Paul Sterbenz, P.E., P.P., Zoning Board Engineer, dated  
July 6, 2015; 

9. Correspondence from Donald B. Whitelaw, Esq., dated November 17, 2015 with 
attachment; and 

10. Report from Donald W. Barrett, dated February 4, 2016. 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Adjustment does hereby make the following findings 

of facts: 

1.  At the conclusion of the October 14, 2015 public hearing the Board asked the applicant to  

explore whether access to the subject property existed from Route 57.  In response the Board received  

correspondence from Donald B. Whitelaw, Esq., dated November 17, 2015 with attachment. 

2. The Board in turn requested that a title company examine the matter and provide an opinion  

regarding access.  The Board was provided with a report from Donald W. Barrett, dated February 4, 2016. 

3. Since that time, the applicant has not further prosecuted his application.  Neither the applicant  

nor has any representative of the applicant appeared at the February, March or April 2016 meetings of the  

Board. The Board is unaware of any notice being provided by the applicant as required by the Municipal 

Land Use Act. 

 Based upon the applicant’s failure to prosecute this application, the Board voted to dismiss the  

application without prejudice. 

 NOW, THEREFOE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Adjustment of the Township of 

Lopatcong, State of New Jersey, that the application of John S. Hawrylo for variance relief for the  

construction of a driveway through an unimproved segment of the Spruce Run Lane right-of-way to  

service a new home proposed on the property designated on the Greenwich Township tax map as 

Block 3, Lot 12.01.  Be and is hereby dismissed without prejudice. 
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CERTIFICATION 

 

 I, Phyllis D. Coleman do hereby certify the above to be a true correct copy of a Resolution  

regularly and duly adopted by the Board of Adjustment of the Township of Lopatcong at a duly called  

meeting of the Board of Adjustment held on April 13, 2016. 

 

 

    

        
       _________________________________ 
                      Phyllis D. Coleman 

 

Motion by: Member DeGroff    Seconded by:  Vice-Chairman Rutledge 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
AYES:  Members DeGroff, Horun, Devos, Bittone, Larsen, Vice-Chairman Rutledge, Chairman Gary 
NAYS:  None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

• Approve Resolution 2016-05 – Delaware Park, LLC - 21 N. 2nd Street, Block 22, Lots 9 & 9.01 – 
Preliminary & Final Site Plan Approval with Variance in the R-75 Zone – Redevelopment of 
Vacant School into Apartments.  To Permit Combined Side Yard Setback of 25.4’ where a 
Minimum of 28’ is Required, Existing Condition and to Permit Greater than Maximum 50% Lot 
Coverage, Existing Condition. 
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Motion by: Vice-Chairman Rutledge   Seconded by:  Member Bittone 
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ROLL CALL: 
 
AYES:  Members DeGroff, Horun, Devos, Bittone, Larsen, Vice-Chairman Rutledge, Chairman Gary 
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN:  Chairman Gary 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
 

• Dr. Mahesh C. Mangalick – 285 Route 57, Block 95, Lot 33 - Use Variance in the HB Zone for a 
home Yoga and Meditation Studio – Denial §243-88 B & C. 
 

Chairman Gary:  Yes sir. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Thank you Mr. Chairman.  Good evening members of the Board, professionals.  Uh, for 
the record, my name is Mark Peck.  I’m an Attorney with the Florio, Perrucci, Steinhardt and Fader Law 
Firm, here on behalf of Dr. Mahesh Mangalick who’s here tonight seeking Use Variance approval.  As the 
Chairman stated, to operate a, uh, home-based Yoga and Meditation Studio; the property is located at 285 
Route 57.  Uh, you may, if you can place yourself on Route 57, right when you’re heading east, uh, you 
have the strip mall would be on the right hand side.  This is a single family residence surrounded by 
farmland on the other side; it’s just past the elementary school.  Uh, it’s Block 95, Lot 33; it’s in the 
Highway Business Zone, uh, where this proposed use is not permitted, which is why we’re here tonight.  
Uh, the property itself is approximately 7/10 of an acre, just under.  Uh, and again as I just indicated, 
bounded by Route 57 to the south and farmland on the other three sides.  The property itself contains a 
two story single family residence with a detached garage on site; access to the garage is from a driveway, 
uh, that is located on the adjacent farmland.  Uh, we do have permission from the, uh, property owner 
who is here tonight and can testify on the record.  But we will, as a condition, um, we will enter into an 
access agreement where we will Indemnify and hold the adjacent property owner harmless; uh, and that 
of course would be subject to Ms. Caroperso and her, uh, compatriots in the, in the estate to their 
satisfaction and to the Boards satisfaction.  Um, and this driveway has been in existence, well since, from 
review of the deeds, since 1927.  Uh, it’s been associated since this, uh, lot was carved out of the, the 
farm.  Um, the application was deemed complete last month; we did provide the necessary affidavits, 
publication of service; so the Board does have jurisdiction to hear the application; and we were fortunate, 
after last month’s meeting, to meet with Mr. Ritter and Mr. Sterbenz, and we appreciate them taking the 
time to do so.  And we did review the application and ironed out some of the, some of the issues.  Uh, the 
only testimony I’m prepared to put on tonight is from Dr. Mangalick and the testimony will show that 
there’s going to be absolutely no soil disturbance associated with this application.  There’s going to be no 
new construction; no alterations to the structure; there will be no employees, just Mr. Mangalick will, will 
do this himself.  Uh, you’ll see from the exhibits and we did distribute, uh, one with some photographs on 
it, which I think we can mark as A-1. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  I have already. 
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Attorney Peck:  Okay, great.  Uh, and you’ll show on the testimony, will show, uh, that the driveway 
parking area can accommodate six vehicles, more than six vehicles.  Uh, the hours of operation will be 
limited from 8 am to 9 pm; not that it’s going to be continuous, you know, from 8 am to 9 pm, but that’s 
when he would, would receive, uh, clients.  Generally, he plans to just, it’s one on one Meditation and 
Yoga Training, but there is, you know, the, the opportunity to go, to have up to six customers.  Uh, but we 
would stipulate that we would, in no instances, have no more than six customers.  Uh, you’ll see that this, 
uh, application does advance the purposes of zoning; uh, specifically, uh, Subsection 2G of the Municipal 
Land Use Law, which, uh, seeks to promote a variety of agriculture, residential, recreational, commercial 
and industrial uses.  Um, Meditation and Yoga Studio certainly falls within the diversity of uses 
contemplated by the Land Use Law. Uh, I believe this site, and, and the testimony will show that this site 
is well suited for the use.  It’s on Route 57; it’s across from a commercial strip mall already.  Um, you 
know, but for this application, the fact that Dr. Mangalick actually filed it and the fact that he may be  
Attorney Peck (Con’t):  applying down the road for a sign, probably no one would ever know it existing if 
you’re having one or two people showing up sporadically for meditations.  Um, there’s going to be, not 
even no significant detrimental impact to neighbors or to the zoning scheme.  I submit, it’s going to have 
no impact to the neighboring properties or the zoning scheme.  So, I believe that the testimony will show 
and you will see that this, uh, that this application is, is worthwhile and should be granted.  So without 
any further adieu, I’d like to call  
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Yeah, I just have one,  
 
Attorney Peck:  Yes sir. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  um, the note from the reports that there is an existing apartment within the principal 
dwelling; uh, and my understanding is that all appropriate permits were secured for that apartment? 
 
Attorney Peck:  That’s correct. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Is it your understanding that that apartment will remain? 
 
Attorney Peck:  That’s correct.  Yes, received, uh, Variance Relief for, for that, I don’t know how long, I 
forget, I have it in my folder; 20-30 years ago. 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Uh, yes, approximately (inaudible) from the Board. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Okay.  Um, and I also take it from your comments that in light of the existence of six 
parking, uh, six parking spaces in addition to the detached garage and that no site improvements are being 
proposed.  That you’re also seeking a waiver from the need to secure Site Plan approval, is that correct? 
 
Attorney Peck:  That is correct.  Thank you. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Thank you.  Call your first witness please, I guess you already did. 
 
Attorney Peck:  My first and only witness.  Dr. Mangalick, please.   
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Attorney Sposaro:  Sir, would you just raise your right hand please.  Do you swear and affirm the 
testimony you’ll give in this matter will be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth, so help you 
God? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Yes sir. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Uh, would you state your name please and spell your last name for the record? 
 
Mr. Mangalick:  Mahesch Mangalick, last name Mangalick. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  And spell it please. 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  M-a-n-g-a-l-i-c-k. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Dr. Mangalick, do you reside at 257 Route 57? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Yes sir, I do. 
 
Attorney Peck:  And how long have you lived there? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  I bought the home in 2001 (inaudible). 
 
Attorney Peck:  And why don’t, why don’t you tell the Board what it is that you’re proposing to do; how 
your Yoga and Meditation Studio will operate. 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Well, I’m 75 years old now, and have been practicing Yoga and Meditation ever since I 
was a little child.  And at this point, I am very familiar, I understand, know the science of meditation and 
how it can benefit the practice, Practitioner of Meditation in ways that no other practice can help.  
Essentially, we, better qualities of life; enjoying compassion, happiness and being calm. 
 
Attorney Peck:  And you  
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Remaining calm. 
 
Attorney Peck:  And you 
 
Dr. Mangalick: And I wish to then, at this point, at this age, share this knowledge with those in the 
community; especially cause I’ve spent like 12 years or 16, almost 16 years here, so why not? 
 
Attorney Peck:  And, and so just for the record, um, you would be the only person providing this 
instruction, correct? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Yes sir. 
Attorney Peck:  And you will have no other employees? 
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Dr. Mangalick:  No, I would not. 
 
Attorney Peck:  And you’re willing to stipulate that the hours of operation would be from 8 am to 9 pm? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  I do.  Yes, I will. 
 
Attorney Peck:  And you don’t expect there’ll be a continuous from 8 am to 9 pm? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  There’s no way at this point I could work that hard.  Most, uh, likely, the way it will 
work is, uh, the session will go on for about an hour.  I do need to take a rest afterward; and the next one 
might begin another half an hour to an hour later.  So within that time period, even if it was one after 
another, how many can I work with? 
 
Attorney Peck:  And, and your intent is to work, uh, one on one, correct? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  That’s the way that I really feel, how I can (inaudible). 
 
Attorney Peck:  And, and you would stipulate to no more than six people at any one time at your 
business, correct? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Yes, correct. 
 
Attorney Peck:  And let me show the Board a photograph, unfortunately we were unable to get it blown 
up bigger; we’ll mark this as A-2, um, is this your residence? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Yes that is, uh,  
 
Attorney Peck:  And this is a view from Route 57? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  A view from Route 57 from the shopping center that you mentioned. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Yes.  So I don’t know if this may, you know, as you drive Route 57 corridor, if you 
recognize, uh, this property. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  You’ll mark that as A-2. 
 
Attorney Peck:  I will mark it on the back. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  While, while you’re, you’ve already marked it, am I, am I correct that since the, uh, 
sessions will not be back to back, there’ll be a gap in between that will allow if there were as many as six 
people there, they would be leaving and they’d move their cars so that there wouldn’t be any overlaps, is 
that correct? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  I don’t expect that to be happening. 
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Attorney Sposaro:  So there’ll be no 
 
Attorney Peck:  He wouldn’t have people coming and going at the same time in the driveway. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  You will not? 
 
Attorney Peck:  Will not. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
Attorney Peck:  And 
 
Chairman Gary:  A, a quick question, the hours of operation, would that, would that mean at 9 pm you 
would still receive another, um, client? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  No, no. 
 
Chairman Gary:  9:00 is the cut off, so, okay. 
 
Member Horun:  And is this seven days a week or Monday through Friday? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Well, I mean, again, at this point I have not really set any days, however the weekdays is 
what I plan to do.  I do need the weekend for myself. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  I should note, just so the, the record is clear, Mr. Peck indicated that the Use Variance 
is being applied for this property is in the Highway Business Zone.  If what was being proposed here was 
not part of a residence, it would be a permitted use.  The only reason that Use Variance Relief is 
necessary is that the applicant intends to continue to reside in the premise and this becomes an effective 
home occupation and home occupations are not permitted.  But the underlying use itself it a permitted 
use.   
 
Attorney Sposaro:  And Dr. Mangalick I’m gonna ask you to take a look at a photograph that we just 
marked at A-3.  Does this show the parking area behind your house, adjacent to the garage? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  That is space that I’m going to have the cars park. 
 
Attorney Peck:  And this photograph shows three cars parked with a significant amount of space between 
them? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  I couldn’t find any more to come in for me to take the pictures.   
 
Attorney Peck:  So we’ll put that in. And, again, from another view, A-4.  That’s also your 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  The same,  



22 
 

Attorney Peck:  Same parking area? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  same, same, uh, view.  Except of course from a different angle. 
Attorney Peck:  Correct.  And you took these photographs? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  I did. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Within the past month? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Within two weeks, yes. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Okay, very good. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  And they accurately represent the conditions that exist out there? 
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Yes sir. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Thank you. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Okay, I don’t believe I have anything further; I don’t see any public here, but certainly, 
uh, if the Board has questions.  Mr. Ritter? 
 
Mr. Ritter:  Well, the only thing I’d add to, uh, what was said earlier is that, uh, the Use Variance is 
triggered because of the fact that it is essentially being placed into a residential structure, which is not 
permitted within the district.  Uh, and he meets all the criteria for a home occupation, except for the 
amount of square footage of the house that’s being allocated in his sketch.  He’s showing about 600 
square feet; 500 is the max. 
 
Attorney Peck:  We’ll, we’ll actually stipulate that the use will only occur in the living room, which is 
approximately 400 square feet.   
 
Mr. Ritter:  Then it will drop all, that’s correct.  So that eliminates that.  Um, and, uh, I would second 
what Mr. Sposaro said, that is in the HB District except for the fact that this is in a home it would be 
considered a permitted use in the district.  
 
Chairman Gary:  Does the Board have any questions or any discussions? 
 
Member Horun:  I, I guess the only question is about the parking.  Um, are, are there any issues in terms 
of the surface of the parking area, anything like that, or is that okay? 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  It, it appears from the photographs that this area is gravel, it’s compacted, looks like 
it’s been there for an awfully long time.  Given the, the relatively light level of traffic that’s proposed 
here, if we start requiring paving then we’ve got to deal with drainage and it becomes a can of worms.  
And I, I think the professionals were of the view that it just wasn’t warranted given the situation.  Mark, 
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Attorney Sposaro (Con’t):  maybe you can, uh, just uh, give us some additional information about the, uh, 
the access agreement; what’s proposed here.  You mentioned it 
 
Attorney Peck:  Yes, well, Ms. Caropreso is, is here, so if you’re done with Dr. Mangalick. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Does, does anybody have any questions? 
 
Member Bittone:  I just have one.  (Inaudible) will be just for Mr. Mangalick or would it survive him? 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  It would go with the property, but I think this use is so unique it would be difficult to 
find someone, uh, that could replicate what he is doing here.  
 
Dr. Mangalick:  Well, should you go ahead here and grant me this, you are most welcome to come as a 
student of Meditation and this is a book that I wrote, you’re welcome to it, if anybody is interested on the 
subject. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Thank, thank you very much. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Well I guess I’m gonna have, this is a hybrid public comment, uh, witness. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Please. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Call, uh, Ms. Caropreso.   
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Mam, would you raise your right hand; do you swear, affirm the testimony that you 
will give in this matter will be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth so help you God? 
 
Ms. Carpreso:  Yes. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  State your name for the record, spell your last name please. 
 
Ms. Caropreso:  Lucene Caropreso, C-a-r-o-p-r-e-s-o. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Good evening Ms. Caropreso, thank you for being here tonight.  Um, you represent the 
estate that owns the surrounding property? 
 
Ms. Caropreso:  Yeah, I’m one of 12 or 13 (inaudible). 
 
Attorney Peck:  Yes, and, uh, the Mangalick driveway runs through your property, correct? 
 
Ms. Caropreso:  Yes. 
 
Attorney Peck:  And if we are able to work out an Access Agreement that’s agreeable to you and the rest 
of the estate, that would indemnify and hold the estate and any successors and anybody with an interest in 
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Attorney Peck (Con’t):  the property, hold them harmless from any liability should an accident with injury 
occur on your property, uh, would that be acceptable to you? 
 
Ms. Caropreso:  Um, that’s what we’re thinking.  I, I have an appointment lined up with an attorney to 
review whatever it is that you, that you, that you write on Tuesday. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Right.  So basically so the Board knows, I’m going to prepare an Access Agreement.  I 
believe the Attorney Sal Di Fazio, out of Flemington,  
 
Ms. Caropreso:  Mm hmm. 
 
Attorney Peck:  if you’re familiar with him.  So I’ll get that, uh, out by Tuesday and obviously is a 
condition of any approvals should the Board be so inclined; the agreement would have to be, uh, agreed to 
by the estate. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  And, and it would be subject to our review and approval as well, but if the parties have 
agreed to it, I don’t see it as an issue.  Just keep me in the loop on that. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Absolutely, I’ll copy you on any correspondences. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Okay.  I do not have any questions of this witness, does anyone? 
 
Chairman Gary:  Anyone? 
 
Attorney Peck:  Do you have anything to add Ms. Caropreso?  Thank you very much for  
 
Chairman Gary:  Hold, hold, hold on a second please.  Jess do you have, you got something? 
 
Member DeGroff:  Does that property, the property that, uh, (inaudible) owns, is that half, half of the 
right-of-way now for that driveway? 
 
Ms. Caropreso:  According to the survey that, um, Mr. Mangalick, and also when I looked at the tax map, 
um, it looks like the farm property is, um, Block 95, Lot 34, and it looks like it wraps around three sides 
of his house.  So, on the right hand side there’s a strip and that is the, the part that has the access. 
 
Member DeGroff:  Yes. 
 
Ms. Caropreso:  Um, 
 
Member DeGroff:  But is the right of way in the deed? 
 
Attorney Peck:  I can represent, it’s not, I haven’t been able to locate an actual right of way that grants the 
owners of Mr. Mangalick’s property the right to use, that there is a 50’ right of way that was originally 
proposed in 1927 to be a roadway dedication and that’s continued on all the deeds.  But I was just unable 
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Attorney Peck (Con’t):  to locate any formal easement or right of way.  It’s just kind of, over the last 
eighty years, eighty-five years, it’s been used as a driveway. 
 
Ms. Caropreso:  Yeah, it’s been a courtesy use. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Yeah, so that’s why we’re, we’re saying we’ll formalize the arrangement. 
 
Member DeGroff:  Thank you. 
 
Member Horun:  And, and part of that area is the parking area itself that would be? 
 
Ms. Caropreso:  It doesn’t, it doesn’t like it.  It looks like it comes us and then the parking would be 
behind, so this would be on, on your property. 
 
Attorney Peck:  If you look at it Exhibit, um, A-1, the, there’s a, a section of the survey that’s copied and 
that shows the parking area, it’s on the Mangalick property but the driveway itself is on the adjacent 
property. 
 
Ms. Caropreso:  Right. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Thank you Mr. Peck. 
 
Chairman Gary:  Thank you.  Anyone else from the public?  I assume not. 
 
Attorney Peck:  So that concludes our testimony and,  
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Thank you. 
 
Attorney Peck:  you know, we submit that this is a very low impact use or have not effect on the 
neighbors and subject to working things out with the neighboring property owner to make sure that 
they’re protected, um, we think the Variance is warranted and hope you’ll agree. 
 
Chairman Gary:  Any 
 
Planner Ritter:  Just one comment before the Board votes is that if the Board decides to approve this, 
could the applicant just on a sketch similar to what he did here just mark the parking area and just turn 
that in as part of the approval 
 
Attorney Peck:  Sure. 
 
Planner Ritter:  so we know where it’s gonna be? 
 
Mr. Mangalick:  Yes I will. 
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Planner Ritter:  Yeah, no, that’s fine, that’s, that’s all. 
 
Chairman Gary:  Is there any further discussion, uh, from the Board? 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  If, if someone so inclined, this would be a motion to approve the application for a Use 
Variance, uh, for a home occupation, uh, subject to the stipulations and limitations set forth by Council on 
the record.  They would be hours of operation, 8 am to 9 pm; there would be, uh, Yoga and Meditation 
classes offered no more than six students at any one time; the classes generally run approximately one 
hour and did not back to back was to avoid any problem with, uh, parking.  The applicant would be the 
only person that offers, would be the only instructor, the conditions would be securing and finalizing an 
access easement providing our planner with a, a marked up sketch  showing exactly where the parking is 
to be located and the standard conditions that are contained in the resolutions that I prepare.  I think that 
covers it. 
 
Chairman Gary: Is there a motion?   
 
Motion by: Member DeGroff   
 
Member Horun:  Is there also something about the, the amount of area? 
 
Planner Ritter:  Yeah, I was gonna, that’s what I was just, he, he should also submit just a revised sketch 
cutting the den off just to show the area that it’s going to be occupied in, that’s all. 
 
Attorney Peck:  Great, we’ll do that. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  I believe the testimony was it would be limited to the living room and that’s 
approximately 400 sq. ft.? 
 
Attorney Peck:  Correct. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Thank you.  Anybody want to make that motion? 
 
Motion by: Vice-Chairman Rutledge  Seconded by:  Member Bittone 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
AYES:  Members DeGroff, Horun, Devos, Bittone, Larsen, Vice-Chairman Rutledge, Chairman Gary 
NAYS:  None 
 
Attorney Peck:  Thank you very much. 
 
Attorney Sposaro:  Thank you Mr. Peck.  Nice to see you. 
 
Attorney Peck:  I think, hopefully again, I’ll be seeing you next month. 
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Chairman Gary:  Moving on, payment of bills.  Uh, I move that we, uh, I make a motion that we pay, uh, 
the bills that are before us. 
 
Motion by: Chairman Gary    Seconded by:   Member Larsen 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
AYES:  Members DeGroff, Horun, Devos, Bittone, Larsen, Vice-Chairman Rutledge, Chairman Gary 
NAYS:  None 
 
Chairman Gary:  Seeing that there is no one from the public here, anymore, I would obtain a motion to 
adjourn. 
 
 
Motion by:  Vice-Chairmen Rutledge    Seconded by:  Member Bittone 
ALL IN FAVOR:  AYE 
NAYS:  NONE 
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